
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

Please note that, pursuant to the authority provided by Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 1(1), the City has determined 
that in-person meetings of the City Council are not practical or prudent due to the COVID-19 public health pandemic 
and the declared national, state, and local emergencies.  Meetings of the Council will be conducted by electronic or 
telephonic means.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 3, to the extent practical and possible, the City Council will 
allow individuals to monitor the meeting electronically.  Access to the meeting can be obtained online by following 
the link provided below or by contacting the City Hall for instructions and methods for obtaining access to the meeting. 

Meeting Access Information: https://www.ci.independence.mn.us/meetings 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY JUNE 15, 2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the June 1, 2021 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20518-20533, Batch #2 
Checks Numbered 20534-20550). 

 
5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  

 
6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the May 2021 Activity 

Report. 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Main Street Traffic Issues and Potential Temporary Closure at CSAH 
90. 
 

9. Open/Misc. 
 

10. Adjourn. 



1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JUNE 1, 2021 –6:30 P.M. 

Police Department Conference Room 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts and Grotting 

ABSENT: Councilor McCoy 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Chris Knopik with Clifton Larson Allen (virtual), Robert Berens (virtual) 

 

3. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Regular City Council Meeting. 

 b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20493-20516, Batch #2 Checks 

 Numbered 20517). 

 c. Approval of Large Assembly Permits: 

  i. Triathlon at Lake Rebecca – August 1, 2021. 

  ii. Wedding at 3757 Independence Road – June 12, 2021. 

  iii. Tour de Tonka Bike Ride – August 7, 2021. 

  iv. Wedding at 5675 Koch’s Crossing – June 19, 2021. 

 d. Agriculture Preserve Termination Application: 2160 Nelson Road. 

 e. Approval to Purchase Furniture from Henricksen for the City Hall Offices. 

 f. Approval to Move a House into the City and Locate on the Property Identified by PID 

 No. 02-118-24-12-0012 (5845 Lake Sarah Heights Drive). 

 

Johnson noted item (f) should be talked about separately.  

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to approve the Consent Agenda items (a)-(e). Ayes: Johnson, 

Spencer, Grotting and Betts. Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

4. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 



2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

Johnson said he was concerned about item (f) on the consent agenda and would like Kaltsas to speak to it. 

Kaltsas said the ordinance says it needs to be inspected by the Building Inspector (Bruce Satek). Satek 

thought it was in good condition. Kaltsas noted it was only the top floor that would be transferred to the lot in 

Independence. Betts asked if it would be put on a new foundation. Kaltsas said he understands it will be put 

on a foundation.  

 

Johnson was concerned if the neighbors would need to be notified in the future of moves like this which is 

quote different than building a new home. He noted it does not happen that often and some do not fit well 

withing the neighborhoods they are placed.  

 

Spencer said his concern is the timing issue and what time frame the whole project would be completed. He 

noted there were several non-conforming structures on the lot already. He would like to assurance of when it 

will be done. Kaltsas asked if they could condition the approval. Spencer noted it could be a financial deposit 

or a definitive date. Grotting agreed that there would need to be more information on what the final build 

would look like.  

 

Berens said this is for his two daughters to live in and he will complete it as quickly as possible. He noted the 

basement would be a walk-out. Berens said no corners would be cut and he has already talked to the surveyor. 

He wants to protect as many trees as he can.  

 

Spencer noted the lot was 100’ and Berens said he prefers to put the garage in front of the house. Spencer said 

he could center the house on the property and put in an L-shaped garage. Spencer encouraged a 5k deposit to 

ensure timeline.  

 

Vose said Council could look at the code and create neighborhood guidelines on homes that being moved in 

as a structure already built. He noted the move needs to be safe and the structure is constructed safely and is 

occupiable. Vose said securing it with a financial component is fine.  

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve the move of a House into the City and Locate on the 

Property Identified by PID No. 02-118-24-12-0012 (5845 Lake Sarah Heights Drive) contingent on a site 

plan, sound, and occupiable structure with a refundable deposit of $5000 upon completion. Ayes: 

Johnson, Spencer, Grotting and Betts. Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. Abstain. None.  MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

5. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings:  

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• Public Works Clean-Up Lunch and goodbye to Trish 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings:  

• Planning Commission Meeting 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 

Betts attended the following meetings:  

• Planning Commission Meeting 

 



3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: (Virtual- unless noted) 

• Caring for Kids Breakfast with Orono Healthy Communities 

• Orono Awards Night 

• National League of Cities Conference Call 

• Public Works Clean-Up Lunch and goodbye to Trish 

• Gillespie Center Drive Through Appreciation 

• Mary Agnes and James Wayland Smith Funeral 

• National League of Cities Energy Meeting 

• Sensible Land Use Committee Meeting 

• City Audit Meeting 

• Senior Community Services Meeting 

• Christ Lutheran Cemetery Service 

• Lewis Cemetery Service 

• Planning Commission Meeting  

 

Horner attended the following meetings:  

• BKV architect meetings (in person and virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

➢ MnDOT meetings on construction efforts for Highway 12 and 92 (virtual) 

 

6. Presentation of the 2020 Financial Audit- Chris Knopik, Clifton Larson Allen (Virtual)  

 

a. 2020 Draft Financial Audit 

 

b. 2020 Audit Presentation 

 

Knopik said the City received an unmodified/ clean audit which is the best possible. One item of note was 

unspent bonds which designate a spike between 2019-2020. He said this was for construction efforts and 

nothing out of the ordinary.  

 

Knopik said property taxes make up the largest portion of the general fund. He noted development was still 

happening even though it was a pandemic. He noted a separate fund was designated foe the Cares monies. 

General government funds illustrate consistency year over year and cover administrative costs. Knopik said 

there was strong delinquent taxes collection effort garnering 98%. He said revenues have outpaced 

expenditures  for the past 4-5 years. Knopik said the City has a nice reserve fund. The future debt load will 

drop down by 2027. Knopik said the sanitary sewer fund will need to have increased operating income. 

Operating loss which includes depreciation is not too bad.  

 

Knopik said there were not any compliance items to report which is good news. He stated the disclaimer that 

an audit provides reasonable assurance but not absolute as that would require going over every item and that 

is not feasible. He said there was one audit of a transaction in which the watershed payment was put in the 

wrong year.  

 



4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to accept the 2020 Financial Audit Report. Ayes: Johnson, 

Grotting, Betts, and Spencer. Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

7. Brent Foster (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following actions for the 

property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Cir . (PID No. 02-l l 8-24-12-0007) 

in the City of lndependence, MN: 

 

a. RESOLUTION 21-0601-01: Considering approval of a variance to allow 

a reduced side yard setback for a detached accessory structure on the 

property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Cir. 

 

Kaltsas said the applicant is seeking a variance from the south - side yard setback to allow the placement of a 

detached accessory structure (shed) to be located on the property. The applicant located the new 10’ x 12’ 

shed on the property last year. The City notified the property owner that the shed needed to be permitted and 

did not meet the applicable side yard setback. In addition, it was noted that the impervious surface calculation 

would need to be updated for the property. 

 

The applicant has an existing shed that is legal non-conforming located in the same area on the site. The 

applicant thought that he would be able to add a new (120 SF or less) shed to the same location without a 

need for an additional permit. The applicant is now asking the City to consider a variance to allow the shed 

to remain in its current location and directly in-line with the existing shed (The required side yard setback for 

detached accessory structures is nine (9) feet. The existing shed is setback 4.4 feet from the side property line 

and the applicant is seeking a variance to allow the new shed to also be setback 4.4 feet from the side property 

line. The proposed shed would require a five (5) foot variance. 

 

The property can have a maximum of 25% impervious surface coverage. This property would be permitted 

to have 4,872 square feet of coverage. The current site has a total impervious coverage of 6,566 square 

feet or 33% coverage. This impervious surface calculation includes the new 120 SF shed. The City has 

been working with the applicant relating to the impervious coverage issue. As a result, and in order to bring 

the property into compliance, the applicant is proposing to replace the existing driveway (1,766 SF) with a 

new pervious paver driveway. This would result in a reduction in the impervious surface coverage to 4,800 

SF or 24.6%. 

 

There are several factors to consider relating to the City’s consideration of granting a variance. The City’s 

ordinance has established criteria for consideration in granting a variance. 

 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 

terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance is 

in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 

the comprehensive plan: and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 

with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in 

complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means: 

 

(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code. 



5 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner. 

(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations 

alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 

not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the 

zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 

impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 

proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential/Shoreland Overlay District. 

The applicant is seeking a variance to allow a second detached accessory structure on the property. The 

existing structure and the proposed structure are similar in architecture, siding, color, etc. 

b. The character of the surrounding area is residential. Many of the surrounding properties (not the 

property to the south) have detached accessory structures similar to that of the proposed. The City 

has historically provided some relief to properties in the Shoreland Overlay District.  

c. There is an existing detached accessory structure located behind the house on the subject property. The 

overall size of this structure is approximately 120 SF. The City allows a maximum of 1,850 SF for the total 

permitted for all detached accessory structures on properties less than 2.5 acres. The total SF in the after 

condition would be 240 SF which is less than the maximum permitted. 

d. The proposed location allows access to the rear yard from the driveway. Locating the shed further 

north would likely prohibit access to the rear yard. The applicant was granted a variance approximately 10 

year ago for a deck stairway on the north side of the property line when adding an addition onto the existing 

home. 

f. Any approval would need to be subject to the applicant replacing the existing driveway with an approved 

permeable paver driveway. Planning Commissioners discussed the request with staff and the applicant. 

Commissioners noted that the structure had been constructed without applicable permits. Commissioners 

clarified that the existing shed predated the established ordinance.  

 

Commissioners discussed the requirement that the driveway needs to be replaced in order for the variance to 

be granted. Commissioners recommended that a condition be added that set an end date for the driveway 

replacement. Commissioners recommended that the driveway replacement occur prior to October 15, 2021. 

Commissioners thought that the requested home addition would be an improvement to the property and found 

that it met the criteria for granting a variance. 

 

Commissioners recommended approval to the City Council. The City has received verbal comments from an 

adjoining property owner who was concerned about the impact of the additional detached structure. The 

adjacent property owner stated that he was in favor of the variance based on the proposed location at the 

public hearing. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a variance to the City 

Council with the following findings and conditions: 

 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 

Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following: 

 a. The approval of a variance is subject to the applicant replacing the entire concrete driveway 

 with an approved permeable paver driveway. The installation of the permeable paver 



6 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

 driveway shall be in accordance with the approved detail and plan provided to the City and 

 attached hereto as Exhibit B. The resulting impervious lot coverage shall be no greater than 

 25%. 

3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant. 

Specifically, the City finds the following: Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural 

Residential/Shoreland Overlay District. The applicant is seeking a variance to allow a second detached 

accessory structure on the property. The existing structure and the proposed structure are similar in 

architecture, siding, color, etc. 

5. The location of the shed on the property is in line with the existing shed. The alignment, matching 

architecture and materials does mitigate some of the potential impacts of the proposed structure. 

6. The character of the surrounding area is residential. The proposed detached accessory structure 

would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood. 

7. The variance will permit a 5-foot reduction (from 9 feet required to 4 feet permitted) of the south side 

yard setback to allow the proposed detached accessory structure as depicted on the site plan and 

building plans attached hereto as Exhibit B. Any modification changes or alteration to the structure 

that does not meet applicable setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in 

the form of a variance. 

 

There was some discussion around the permeable drive and how it must be maintained to be effective and 

lasting. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to approve RESOLUTION 21-0601-01for a variance to allow 

a reduced side yard setback for a detached accessory structure on the property located at 4755 

Lake Sarah Heights Cir. for the property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Cir . (PID No. 

02-l l 8-24-12-0007) in the City of lndependence, MN: Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, and 

Spencer. Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

8. Nate Bjerga (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the property 

located at 4991 Perkinsville Rd. (PID No. 24-118-24-41-00 l 0) in the City of 

Independence, MN: 

 

a. RESOLUTION 21-0601-02: Considering approval of a variance to allow 

a reduced side yard setback associated with a proposed  building  addition  

on the subject property. 

 

Kaltsas said the applicant is seeking approval to construct an addition onto the existing home. The addition 

includes living space as well as a new garage. The existing home is currently a legal non-conforming structure 

that does not meet all applicable setbacks for this property. The home does not meet either side yard setback 

(30 feet required). 

 

The applicant is asking the City to consider granting a variance from the side yard setback (west property 

line) to allow an expansion of the existing home that is in line with the existing side yard setback. The City 

requires a side yard setback of 30 feet for properties zoned RR-Rural Residential. The existing home is 

located 21 feet from the west side property line. The applicant is proposing to construct the home addition 

to extend north so that the side yard setback is 21 feet from the side property line rather than 30 feet as 

required. The resulting variance to the side yard setback would be 9 feet. The required setbacks for 

properties zoned RR-Rural Residential are as follows: There are several factors to consider relating to 

granting a variance. The City’s ordinance has established criteria for consideration in granting a variance. 



7 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 

terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 

is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 

the comprehensive plan: and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 

with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in complying with 

the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means: 

(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 

code. 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the 

landowner. 

(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations 

alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are not limited to, inadequate 

access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the zoning code 

based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 520.23. Conditions and 

restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may impose conditions on a 

variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough proportionality to the impact created 

by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District. 

b. Many of the surrounding properties do not appear to be in compliance with all applicable principle 

or accessory structure setbacks. 

c. The character of the surrounding area is residential. The proposed expansion and remodel of a 

single-family home is in keeping with the surrounding area. There are several additional items that could be 

considered by the City: 

 

1. Staff discussed alternative options for expanding the existing home with the applicant. They noted 

that if they were to construct the garage further to the east, it would significantly impact the front 

entrance. They also noted that they would like to maintain the general interior configuration of the home. The 

proposed addition that stays in line with the existing structure allows for the best reuse and remodel layout of 

the existing home. 

2. The applicant could locate a detached accessory structure on this property and meet applicable setbacks (15 

feet). The applicant noted that they would like to maintain an attached garage. 

3. The applicant is purposing to construct an addition that does not increase the non-conforming setback of the 

existing structure. 

4. The proposed remodel of the existing home would likely increase the value of and bring an update 

to this property. 

5. The proposed home/garage addition is a two-story addition which will be taller than the portion of 

the existing structure that is currently located on this side of the property.  

 

Ultimately the City will need to find that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant. 

Due to the configuration of the house on the property and the layout of the existing house itself, there are 

limited ways to expands the structure that would not require a significant departure to the internal and 

external use of the existing home. The setback of the proposed addition from Perkinsville Road and the 

natural screening and buffering that exists to the surrounding property appear to help mitigate the potential 

impacts. Planning Commissioners clarified the request with staff and the applicant. Commissioners noted that 

the adjacent house to the west was setback a considerable distance from the shared property line. 



8 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

Commissioners noted that the lot is a unique in that it is narrower than most lots within the City. 

Commissioners thought that the requested home addition would be an improvement to the property and 

found that it met the criteria for granting a variance. Commissioners recommended approval to the City 

Council. 

1.The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 

Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following submittals: 

a. A survey of the property and proposed building addition. 

b. A drainage plan at the time of building permit application. The drainage plan will be reviewed by 

the City to ensure that the proposed improvements do not adversely impact any of the surrounding properties. 

3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant. Specifically, 

the City finds the following: 

a) Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District. The applicant is 

seeking a variance to allow a building addition to the existing home on the property. 

b) The location of the proposed addition/remodel is in line with the existing home and building setback 

from the west property line. The alignment with the existing building, updated building architecture 

and exterior finishes appear to mitigate some of the potential impacts resulting from the addition. The 

character of the surrounding area is residential. The proposed building addition and remodel 

would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood. 

4. The variance will permit an approximate 10-foot reduction (30-foot setback required variance to allow an 

approximate 20-foot setback) to allow the expansion of the home to be “in-line” with the existing 

structure without further encroaching into the side yard setback (west property line). This variance will 

allow the proposed structure as depicted on the site plan and building plans attached hereto as Exhibit 

B. 

5. Any modification, change or alteration to the structure that does not meet applicable setbacks in the 

future would require additional review and approval in the form of a variance. 

6. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review and recording of the requested 

variance. 

 

Betts noted this was a good improvement. Grotting said it gets rid of the split look. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 21-0601-02 allowing a variance to 

allow a reduced side yard setback associated with a proposed  building  addition  on the subject 

property located at 4991 Perkinsville Rd. (PID No. 24-118-24-41-00 l 0) in the City of 

Independence, MN: Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, and Spencer. Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

9. Open/ Misc. 

 

Johnson opened discussion around anonymous letter received from a resident on Woodhill Road. Spencer said 

the first item was boat trailers parked in the ROW. He said the owners tend to store their trailers on the 

opposite side of the road on the grass area. Spencer said they do not appear to be in the ROW and most of the 

people he talked to on the road do not seem to think it is a real issue.  

 

The second items were children riding golf carts and there was a concern about safety. Spencer said if it was 

an issue maybe WHPS could get involved.  

 



9 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. June 1, 2021 

 

The third issue was that some access on Lake Sarah was being questioned as far as its proper use. Spencer 

noted this was not an area the City could enforce, and it is up to the residents to work out the access/ structure 

questions. 

 

10. Adjourn. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn at 8:00 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, and 

Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: McCoy. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

___________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 
























